
 

 
Telephone Enquiries: Susan Gardner, Democratic Services (01254) 380184 
Email:  susan.gardner@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Wednesday, 31 August 2016 

Page 1 of 2  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Communities and Wellbeing Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 
Wednesday, 7 September 2016 at 5.30 pm, 
Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Eamonn Higgins (in the Chair) 
 
Councillors Bernadette Parkinson, Mohammad Ayub, Loraine Cox, Kath Pratt and Glen Harrison 
 
Cooptees: Dave Parkins 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence and Substitutions   
 
 

2.   Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

3.   Minutes of Last Meeting  (Pages 3 - 8) 
 
 

4.   Responses of Cabinet to reports of Overview and Scrutiny - Work Programmes  
(Pages 9 - 14) 
 
The report provides feedback from Cabinet on the Draft 2016/17 Overview and Scrutiny 
Work Programmes. 
 
Recommended (1) That the Committees notes the feedback provided by 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2016-2017 

Public Document Pack



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Cabinet on the Draft 2016/17 Overview and Scrutiny Work 
Programmes. 

 
(2) That the Committees formally approve their 2016/17 
Overview and Scrutiny Work Programmes. 

 

5.   Appointment of Co-optees  (Pages 15 - 18) 
 
To receive an application for a Co-opted Member on to the Communities and Wellbeing 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
Recommended (1) That the Committee considers the application and makes 

an appropriate recommendation to Council. 
 

6.   Lancashire County Council Property Strategy Review  (Pages 19 - 30) 
 
To inform the Committee of Lancashire County Council’s Property Strategy, which 
includes a review of the buildings it uses to run front line services, and how this affects 
Hyndburn. 
 
Recommended (1) The Committee notes the report. 
 

7.   Calderstones NHS Trust / Transforming Care   
 
To receive a verbal update from the Overview and Scrutiny Officer on the 
recommendations made by this Committee on 28th June 2016 
 

 
 



 

 
1 

 
COMMUNITIES AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE 
 

 
Tuesday, 28th June, 2016 

 
Present:  Councillor Eamonn Higgins (in the Chair),  

Councillors Bernadette Parkinson (Vice Chair), Mohammad Ayub, 
Loraine Cox and Glen Harrison 
Cooptees  
 

In Attendance: Councillors Glen Harrison, Stephanie Haworth and Gareth Molineux 
Kelly Watson – Principal Policy Officer 

  

Apologies: Councillor Kath Pratt 
 

 
441 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 

 
An apology for absence was submitted on behalf of Councillor Pratt.   
 

442 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
Councillor Glen Harrison submitted a disclosable pecuniary interest in item 6 – 
Transforming Care/Calderstones NHS, due to his employment by Calderstones NHS Trust.  
Councillor Harrison left the room during determination of the item and took no part in the 
discussion or decision making of the item. 
 

443 Minutes of Last Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on Friday 18th March 2016 were submitted for approval as a correct record. 
  
Recommended        -  That the Minutes be received and approved as a  
    correct record. 
 

444 Appointment of Co-optees 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer submitted a report for Members of the Committee to 
receive applications for co-opted members on the Communities and Wellbeing Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee.  He reported that two applications had been received from former 
councillors Kerry Molineux and Dave Parkins.  The remaining place remained vacant. 
 

Resolved (1) That Honorary Alderman Dave Parkins and former 
Councillor Kerry Molineux be appointed as co-opted 
members to the Communities and Wellbeing Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee for the municipal year 2016/17;  
and,   

 (2) That it be noted that one vacant position for co-opted 
member to the Communities and Wellbeing Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee remained. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3.



 
 
 

 

 
2 

 
 

445 Work Programme 2016/17 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer submitted a report to ask the Committee to give 
consideration to and approve the work programme for 2016/17 of the Community and 
Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  He referred Members to the appendix 
attached to the report for further details of the work programme and invited Members to 
submit suggestions for the work programme. 
 

Resolved - That the 2016/17 Communities and Wellbeing Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme be approved 
and submitted to the next meeting of Cabinet for 
comment. 

 
 

446 Transforming Care/Calderstones NHS 
 
A report was submitted to Committee to inform Members of the ‘Building the Right Support 
and Transforming Care Plans, and the local effects of these’.  The Chief Executive of 
Calderstones NHS Trust was present at the meeting to provide further information to that 
contained in the report. 
 
The Chief Executive of Calderstones NHS, Mark Hindle, informed the Committee that three 
key policy documents were driving change: 

 Care and Forensic Security 

 Building Life Support 

 Homes not Hospitals 
 
He referred to the documents supporting reasons for change and explained that the Chief 
Executive of NHS England had considered that there was no longer a need for inpatient 
care and that hospitals such as Calderstones were no longer required.  Members of the 
Committee were informed that it had been considered that people would receive better care 
in homes with families with external support packages.  He reported that closure would take 
place over a period of time to 2018 with half of the patients being discharged gradually into 
the community.  He gave details of the 3 levels of secure services provided and that the aim 
of the review was to improve patient diagnosis, treatment and reduce the number of long 
term bed need in units.  He reported on the funding that would be required to support the 
new clinical model.  
 
In respect of closing Calderstones the Chief Executive of Calderstones reported that this 
would mean a major change for staff and potential redundancies but reported that they had 
worked with staff and the Union to meet the challenges of transferring services.  He pointed 
out that staff would be given the opportunity to transfer to Mersey Care or obtain 
employment in community roles.   
 
Member asked why some service users were being moved to private homes not inspected 
by the Care Quality Commission which was directly against the Stephen Bubb report and 
out of 80 service users discharged, how many were being discharged to the private sector? 
 
The Chief Executive reported that there were currently not enough community specific 
teams and that people were discharged to the most suitable places.  He pointed out that 
consideration was given to the quality of places and that the private sector would be given 
the opportunity to provide this care.   

Page 4



 
 
 

 

 
3 

 
Councillor Gareth Molineux requested further information on the profits or funding used by 
the private and third sector organisations.   
 
The Chief Executive reported that there was a 60% to 40% split with 40% reinvestment but 
pointed out that some of the best quality providers were in the private sector.   
 
The Chair asked for further information on: 

 How many of the 80 service users that had been discharged  during the last 18 
months had been discharged successfully. 

 If there was sufficient community care in Lancashire for a 24 hour service. 

 When a consultation would take place. 

 Why medium and secure services weren’t being used. 

 If a site had been identified for a suitable unit to be built on. 

 Where low, medium and secure service provision would be located. 
 
The Chief Executive explained that only one of the 80 service users had been returned 
back to the unit.  He pointed out that although there were not enough community specific 
teams at the moment, the Commissioner was working hard to recycle the use of existing 
money with some slight additional funding to provide a good service.  The consultation 
would take place during late Summer/early Autumn and that medium secure services would 
probably be located at Meghull and low secure service within East Lancashire although 
nothing had yet been confirmed.   
 
Kelly Watson, Principal Policy Officer asked for further information on the consultations 
being held and for an approximation of how many of the workforce resided in Hyndburn, 
that would likely to be affected.   
 
The Chief Executive reported that there were between 50 & 100 members of staff who lived 
in Hyndburn and that there was no desire to make anyone redundant and it was their 
intention to offer alternative work wherever possible.  He pointed out that some people had 
requested redundancy and discussions were taking place with the Unions.  
 
Councillor Molineux referred to the proposed model and the reliance on outside agencies 
and funding, particularly as European funding may be lost due to Brexit.  He asked what 
guarantees were in place to protect quality of service for patients and  
adequate funding. 
 
The Chief Executive reported that people would be discharged to the community with 
significant funding and that there were good places for people to live and that it would be 
their strategy to ensure that people were discharged to good places.    
 
Councillor Nedwell asked if patients may have to relocate further away from Lancashire if 
the necessary places were not available. 
 
The Chief Executive indicated that this would be the case. 
 
The Chair referred to the current provision of the purpose built unit at Calderstones for 
secure patients and asked why a newly built unit had been proposed.   
 
The Chief Executive pointed out that the current state-of-art unit was only 2 years old and 
had cost £10 m to build and indicated his preference for keeping it open.   He indicated that 
if they could repurpose Mapelwood they would be able to save £25 m but that the decision 
was being taken by NHS Trust of England.  He indicated that there could be legal 

Page 5



 
 
 

 

 
4 

challenges to their decisions.  He also pointed out that over 100 people were being sent out 
of Lancashire when there were not enough beds and that the provision of beds could be 
found in Lancashire at a lower cost.   
 

Resolved (1) That a report be submitted to Full Council 
recommending that the Council support the retaining of 
facilities at Calderstones for medium and low security 
patients; 

                                        (2)   That there be greater public consultation to provide for 
greater informed decision making; and   

 (3) That the Council writes to the Chief Executive of NHS 
England to outline the Council’s concerns over the 
closure of the in-patient facilities at Calderstones NHS 
Trust and to urge reconsideration of using the purpose 
built facilities for future medium and low secure 
patients. 

 
447 The Evergreen School Project 

 
Trustees of the proposed Evergreen school gave a presentation to the Committee on the 
creation of the new free school in providing secondary education.  They reported that they 
had submitted an application to the Department of Education for a new secondary school in 
Great Harwood and had received advice on how to set up the school.  They referred to the 
required stages of the application and the information and evidence they would be required 
to produce.  The rationale for the school was to provide flexible teaching based around a 
project, high quality teaching and learning, provision of parental choice in education and to 
meet the need for new educational facilities in the area.  The Committee was informed that 
the Trustees of the school were made up of a range of people including many local parents 
and that the location of Great Harwood had been chosen because there was a need for a 
further educational facility in this area.  A large number of children currently had to travel by 
bus to school.  The educational model was: 

- Ebacc 
- Additional qualifications 
- Project based learning – a different style to the delivery of the national 

curriculum 
- The School would also be used for community based activities 

 
They explained that consideration would be given to where the school would be located in 
Great Harwood and that priority for attending the school would be given to children who 
lived in Great Harwood.  She indicated that pupils would be encouraged to walk to school.  
Future plans would be for a sixth form provision.  Consideration could also be given to 
locating the school in Clayton le Moors as there was a need for an educational facility in this 
area.  If the school was given the go ahead she referred to how funding could be accessed.   
 
Details of teaching methods were provided including project based learning, no sets or 
groups and taking exams at a time considered ready for the child.  Teaching would be 
provided by a range of personnel including teachers, experts from businesses and 
representatives from organisations and the community.  The aim would be to empower 
children by identifying individual needs and matching them to a preferred teaching method.   
 
Members referred to their support and enthusiasm for the proposed school and the 
teaching methods that would be engaged.  Councillor Molineux indicated that he would 

Page 6



 
 
 

 

 
5 

provide a letter of support for the proposed school to the Department of Education as a 
County Councillor for Great Harwood and a district Councillor for Great Harwood.   

Resolved - That the Committee recommends that the Council gives 
its support to the application for the proposed free 
school, the Evergreen School in Great Harwood.   

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Signed:…………………………………………… 

 
Date: …………….………………………………………… 

 
Chair of the meeting 

At which the minutes were confirmed 
 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO: Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee; 
Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

DATE: 6th September 2016; 7th September 2016 

REPORT AUTHOR: Ben Caulfield, Overview and Scrutiny Officer 

TITLE OF REPORT: Responses of Cabinet to Reports of Overview and 
Scrutiny – Work Programmes 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To provide the Overview and Scrutiny Committees with feedback from Cabinet on the 

2016/17 work programmes. 
 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 That the Committees notes the feedback provided by Cabinet on the Draft 2016/17 

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programmes. 
 
2.2 That the Committees formally approve their 2016/17 Overview and Scrutiny Work 

Programmes. 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 It is a requirement in the Council’s Constitution for the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees to receive responses of Cabinet or Council to issues raised by them. 
 
3.2 The following report of Overview and Scrutiny was submitted to Cabinet on 31st August 

2016 
 

 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programmes 
 
3.3 According to the Council’s Constitution, a draft O & S work programme should be 

submitted for comment to Cabinet. Draft work programmes for the Resources and the 
Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committees were submitted to 
Cabinet on 31st August. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4.



 

 
3.4 The Overview and Scrutiny Officer will feedback any comments from Cabinet verbally 

to the Committee at the meeting. 
 
3.6 Work Programmes for the Resources and the Communities and Wellbeing Overview 

and Scrutiny Committees are in appendix 1. 
 
 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable to this report 
 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 All Councillors and Service Heads were given the opportunity to contribute to the 

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 
 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

None arising from this report 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

Not applicable 

Assessment of risk 
 

Not applicable 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

Not applicable 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 Agenda, reports and minutes of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 

19th July 2016  
http://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=1081&Ver=
4 

 

Page 10

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407
http://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=1081&Ver


 

 
7.2 Agenda, reports and minutes of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee on 28th June 2016 
http://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=129&MId=1132&Ver=
4 

 
7.3 Agenda, reports and minutes of Cabinet on 31st August 2016 

http://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=1075&Ver=
4 

 
 
  

Page 11

http://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=129&MId=1132&Ver
http://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=1075&Ver=4
http://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=1075&Ver=4


 

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programmes 2016/17 
 

  
Draft Resources Work Programme 2016/17 
 

 
Meeting Date 
 

 
Work Topics (Please note from the July meeting, the Resources Committee will 
review one department business plan update at each meeting. There will be no 
Business Plans Scrutiny Meeting in November)  

 
19

th
  July 

 
- Impact of Taxis Licenced outside of the Borough – Cllr Molineux / Jane Ellis 

- HR Business Plan (People Strategy) 

 
6

th
  Sept 

 
- Integrated IT solution and potential savings – Cllr Molineux/Scott Gardner 

- Housing and Regeneration Business Plan Update – Cllr Cleary/Mark 

Hoyle/Helen McCue-Melling 

- Land Asset Review – Progress on Recommendations – Cllr Cleary / Mark 

Hoyle / Helen McCue-Melling 

 

 
25

th
  October 

 
- Town Centre Viability (Report to include impact of late night licensing, 

business rates, betting shops and takeaways) – Cllr Cleary (To liaise with 

various Service Heads) 

- Audit Business Plan Update – Mark Beard 

 
13th December 

 
- Fly Tipping in Hyndburn – Cllr Cox 

- Environmental Health Service Plan – Cllr Cox 

- Effects of the Removal of Cost Share for Waste Services from LCC – Cllr 

Cox  

 
24th January 

 
 
- Hyndburn Borough Council website review – Cllr Molineux / Scott Gardner 

- IT Business Plan Update – Cllr Molineux/Scott Gardner 

- Legal and Democratic Services Business Plan Update – Cllr Molineux/ Jane 

Ellis 

 
 

 

 
14

th
 February  

 
Budget – Joe McIntyre/Cllr Molineux 
 
 
 
 

 
21st March  

 
- Hyndburn Leisure Financial Update – Cllr Moss 

- Office of the Chief Executive Business Plan Update – Cllr Parkinson / Mike 

Walker 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 12



 

 Draft Communities and Wellbeing Work Programme 2016/17 
 

 
Meeting date 

 
Work topics 

28
th
 June - Applications for Co-opted Members 

- Closure of Calderstones NHS Trust / Transforming Care 

- Proposal for Free School in Great Harwood 

 

 
7

th
 September 

- LCC Property Strategy 

 
 
 
 
 

 
28

th
 October 

 
 

- St Christophers School Proposal 

 
 
 
 
 

 
13

th
 December 

 
- Social Housing Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
27

th
 January 

 
 

- Community Safety Plan 

- Policing  in Hyndburn – update on new model 

- North West Ambulance Service 

- Fire and Rescue Update / First Responders 

 
 
 
 
 

24
th
  March   

 
- Lancashire and South Cumbria Change Programme 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO: Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

DATE: 07 September 2016 

REPORT OF: Cllr Eamonn Higgins, Chair of the Communities and 
Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

REPORT AUTHOR: Overview and Scrutiny Officer 

TITLE OF REPORT: Appointment of Co-optees 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To receive applications for a Co-opted Member on to the Communities and Wellbeing 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 That the Committee considers the application and makes an appropriate 

recommendation to Council. 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 The Councils Constitution, Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule C2 states: 
 

Each overview and scrutiny committee may appoint up to three members of the public, 
who the committee deems to have relevant experience of topics related to that scrutiny 
committee, as non-voting co-optees.  
 
(i) Applications may be invited to fill a vacancy for a co-opted member at the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee; applications may also be received directly from members of 
the public.  

 
(ii) The application will be considered first at the relevant Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. The Committee will consider the knowledge and experience of the 
applicant relevant to the terms of reference or work programme of the Committee.  

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5.



 

(iii) The intention is that such co-optees will be non-political.  
 

(iv) If the majority of the Overview and Scrutiny members support the appointment of 
the applicant, the proposed appointment will be presented to Council for approval.  

 
3.2 There are 6 places for Co-opted Members between the 2 Committees. At the Council 

Meeting on 7th July 2016, Honorary Alderman Dave Parkins was re-appointed to the 
Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Honorary 
Alderman Ian Ormerod was re-appointed to the Resources Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. One new appointment, was made – Kerry Molineux was appointed to the 
Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
3.3 There are currently two vacancies on the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

and one vacancy on the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 

 
3.4 One new application to be Co-opted on to this Committee has been received by Ann 

Scaife, nominated by Councillor Tony Dobson. 
 
 “Ann is a former member of Hyndburn Council and during her years she also was 

Portfolio Holder for Community Services, which has given her an ideal background and 
experience for this particular scrutiny panel, her enthusiasm for our borough is 
matched by a dedication to work with all members to make improvements.” 

 
3.5 This Committee must decide whether or not to recommend to Council that Ann Scaife 

be appointed as Co-optee to the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 

 
3.6 For information, two applications have been received for the Resources Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee – Patrick McGinley and Honorary Alderman Paul Barton. 
    
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 It is a requirement of the Constitution that the Committee considers applications from 

members of the public to be co-opted on to the Committee. Any alternative would first 
require a change to the Constitution. 

 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 None 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 

None 

Page 16



 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

None 

Assessment of risk 
 

None 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  

Not Applicable 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 None 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

REPORT TO: Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

DATE: 07 September 2016 

REPORT AUTHOR: Overview and Scrutiny Officer 

TITLE OF REPORT: Lancashire County Council Property Strategy and 
Changes to Buildings Consultation 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

Options Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: Options If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To inform the Committee of Lancashire County Council’s Property Strategy, which 

includes a review of the buildings it uses to run front line services, and how this affects 
Hyndburn. 

 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 The Committee note the report. 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 On 26th November 2015, Lancashire County Council’s Cabinet approved the report 

“Property Strategy – Neighbourhood Centres”. The report “set out a methodology to 
achieve a sustainable long term reduction in the County Council's corporate property 
portfolio to align with the aspirations of the Corporate Strategy and to enable the future 
successful delivery of public facing services”. 

 
3.2 The report recommended that: 
 

1. Approval be given to the proposed strategy for the reduction of the County Council's 
corporate operational property and methodology for the delivery of public facing 
services from a series of multi-functional 'Neighbourhood Centres'. 

 
2. Approval be given for the evaluation of identified datasets and subsequent 
consultation on the recommendations for the final selection of premises to become 
Neighbourhood Centres. 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6.



 

 

3. Approval be given for contact to be made with relevant public sector partners, 
including the voluntary sector, to explore opportunities for co-location and sharing of 
service delivery. 
 
4. That approval be given for the estimated cost of works required to premises to 
deliver the Property Strategy (Neighbourhood Centres) to be added to the Capital 
Programme, and that detailed phasing of the required expenditure be 
provided in subsequent reports. 

 
3.3 The full report is included in the appendices. 
 
3.4 The following is information taken from Lancashire County Council’s website, which 

hosted a consultation on the proposals; 
 
 “The county council has to change its services to make them more affordable. The 

council is receiving less funding from the Government, while also having to spend 
more on essential services for vulnerable children and adults because of an increase in 
demand. 

 
These things mean there is much less money available to spend on other services. In 
total the council has to find savings of £200m over the next five years. 

  
The council provides services in different ways. Some services are provided to people 
in their own homes and a growing number are provided online. Many others are 
provided from a network of more than 200 buildings across Lancashire. 
 
In November 2015 the council's Cabinet agreed a new Property Strategy, which 
identified a list of all of the buildings the council currently delivers services from. We 
then began a review to see how the council could reduce the amount of money it 
spends on providing services from so many different places, with the aim of identifying 
which buildings should continue to be used in the future. The proposals we consulted 
on were as a result of that review. 
 
It was proposed that services would still be available, but at fewer locations than they 
are now. Our review considered 238 buildings and proposed in the future that our 
services would be available in 132 buildings” 

 
3.5 Several service types were excluded from the review including schools. The following 

were included in the review:  
 

 Youth Offending Team 

 Disability Day Service 

 Supporting Carers of Children and Young People 

 CAPSS Centre 

 Community Association 

 Conferencing 

 Library 

 Registrar's 

Page 20

http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=878&MID=5266#AI36007


 

 

 Older People's Day Centre 

 Transport 

 Community Mental Health Team 

 Adult Social Care 

 Scientific Services Lab 

 Trading Standards Lab 

 Children's Centre/Early Years' Service 

 Young People's Centre/Youth Zone 

 Leaving Care Outreach 

 Children Missing Education 

 Pupil Attendance Team 

 Records Office 

 Welfare Rights 

 Short Stay School (Temporary use) 
 
3.6 The table below shows the buildings in Hyndburn considered and the proposal relating 

to each building: 
 
  

Name LCC 
functions 

Address LCC Proposal 

Accrington    

Hyndburn Youth 
Zone 

Youth Zone New Era, Paradise 
Street, Accrington, 
BB5 1PB 

Leave open 

Accrington Library Library  St James’ Street, 
Accrington BB5 1NQ 

Leave open 

Accrington 
Registrars 

Registrars Willows Street, 
Accrington 

Leave open 

Accrington Youth 
Offending Team 

Youth 
Offending 
Team 

Blake Street, 
Accrington BB5 1RE 

Propose to close 

Hyndburn Day 
Services (Enfield) 

Disability 
Day Service 

Church Lane, 
Accrington BB5 4DE 

Leave open 

Woodhaven Centre Older 
People’s Day 
Centre 

Thorneyholme Road, 
Accrington BB5 5BB 

Leave open 

Fairfield Children 
Centre 

Children 
Centre 

Fairfield Street, 
Accrington, BB5 0LD 

Leave open 

The Beeches, 
Accrington South 
Sure Start 

Children’s 
Centre 

Rimington Avenue, 
Accrington, BB5 0NP 

Propose to close 

The Park, Church & 
West Accrington 
Sure Start 

Children’s 
Centre 

Norfolk Grove, 
Church, BB5 4RY 

Leave open 

Clayton-le-
Moors 

   

Page 21



 

 

Clayton-le-Moors 
Young People’s 
Centre 

Young 
People’s 
Centre 

Moor Street, 
Clayton-le-Moors, 
BB5 5PH 

Propose to close 

Clayton-le-Moors Library Pickup Street, 
Clayton-le-Moors 
BB5 5NR 

Service proposed to close – 
HBC building 

Clayton & Altham 
Children’s Centre 

Children’s 
Centre 

Earl Street, Clayton-
le-Moors BB5 5HT 

Leave open 
HBC building 

Silver Birches CAPSS Child and 
Parent  
Support 
Service 

Atlas Street, Clayton 
Le Moors BB5 5LT 

Leave open 

Oswaldtwistle    

Oswaldtwistle 
Library 

Library Union Road, 
Oswaldtwistle BB5 
3HS 

Propose to close 

Oswaldtwistle Young 
People’s Centre 

Young 
People’s 
Centre 

Harvey Street, 
Oswaldtwistle BB5 
3LT 

Propose to close 

Huncoat    

Huncoat Children’s 
Centre 
(SCHOOL / 
Children’s Centre) 

Children’s 
Centre 

Lynwood Road, 
Huncoat BB5 6LR 

Propose to close 

Rishton    

Rishton Library Library High Street, Rishton 
BB1 4LA 

Propose to close 

Copper House 
Children’s Centre 

Children’s 
Centre 

Station Road BB1 
4HF 

Leave open 

Great Harwood    

Great Harwood 
Young People’s 
Centre 

Young 
People’s 
Centre 

Lowerfold Road, 
Great Harwood BB6 
7NS 

Propose to close 

Great Harwood 
Library 

Library Queen Street, Great 
Harwood BB6 7AL 

Leave open 

Great Harwood 
Children’s Centre 

Children’s 
Centre 

Great Harwood 
Primary School, 
Rushton Street BB6 
7JQ 

Leave open 

 
3.7 Local organisations, community and voluntary groups were asked to submit proposals 

to transfer those assets earmarked for closure. LCC provided detailed property 
information packs for each asset so that proposals could be made. The window for 
submitting proposals closed in August. 

 
3.8 The agenda for Lancashire County Council’s Executive Scrutiny Committee on 6th 

September has been published. Agenda item 4, “The Property Strategy – Responses 

Page 22



 

 

to Consultation” can be viewed in full here 
http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=43146#mgDocuments 

 
3.9 The report is extremely detailed and contains 17 appendices. Below is a summary of 

some of the information taken from this report and appendices relating to Hyndburn. 
 
3.10 There are no changes to the plans for Hyndburn buildings than those outlined in the 

Property Strategy as a result of the consultation.  
 
3.11 Works are required to create LCC Neighbourhood Centres by March 2020 at: 
 

 Accrington Library and Registration Office 

 Copperhouse Children’s Centre 

 Great Harwood Library 

 Hyndburn Adult Disability Day Services 
 
3.12 Lancashire County Council service delivery will cease on 30th September 2016 at: 
 

 Accrington Youth Offending Team 

 Clayton-Le-Moors Library 

 Oswaldtwistle Library 
 
3.13 Full library service will cease between 1st October and 30th November 2016 but there 

may be a period of transition as satellite libraries are delivered at: 
 

 Rishton Library 
 
3.14 Lancashire County Council service delivery in these buildings will cease by 31st March 

2017 and Lancashire County Council will plan the response where there are other 
organisations occupying. 

 

 Clayton-Le-Moors Young People’s Centre 

 Huncoat Children’s Centre 

 Oswaldtwistle Young People’s Centre 

 Sure Start Hyndburn – Accrington South Children’s Centre 
 
3.15 Lancashire County Council service delivery relocated to Neighbourhood Centres 

between 1st January 2017 and 31st March 2020. 
 

 Great Harwood Young People’s Centre 
 
3.16 The other buildings which formed part of the review for Hyndburn that are not 

mentioned in paragraphs 3.11 – 3.15 are considered fit for purpose for proposed future 
use and which LCC will continue to be reviewed for best use of space. 

 
3.17 The table below shows where applications were received for transfer of the Hyndburn 

assets listed for disposal. 
 

Page 23

http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=43146#mgDocuments


 

 

 
 
 

Name LCC 
functions 

Address LCC Proposal Expressions 
of Interest 
Received 

Business 
Cases 
Received 

Accrington      

Accrington Youth 
Offending Team 

Youth 
Offending 
Team 

Blake Street, 
Accrington BB5 
1RE 

Propose to close 2 0 

The Beeches, 
Accrington South 
Sure Start 

Children’s 
Centre 

Rimington 
Avenue, 
Accrington, BB5 
0NP 

Propose to close 0 0 

Clayton-le-
Moors 

     

Clayton-le-Moors 
Young People’s 
Centre 

Young 
People’s 
Centre 

Moor Street, 
Clayton-le-
Moors, BB5 5PH 

Propose to close 1 0 

Clayton-le-Moors 
Library 

Library Pickup Street, 
Clayton-le-Moors 
BB5 5NR 

Service proposed to 
close – HBC 
building 

1 1 

Oswaldtwistle      

Oswaldtwistle 
Library 

Library Union Road, 
Oswaldtwistle 
BB5 3HS 

Propose to close 2 2 

Oswaldtwistle 
Young People’s 
Centre 

Young 
People’s 
Centre 

Harvey Street, 
Oswaldtwistle 
BB5 3LT 

Propose to close 0 0 

Huncoat      

Huncoat Children’s 
Centre 
(SCHOOL / 
Children’s Centre) 

Children’s 
Centre 

Lynwood Road, 
Huncoat BB5 6LR 

Propose to close 0 0 

Rishton      

Rishton Library Library High Street, 
Rishton BB1 4LA 

Propose to close 1 1 

Great 
Harwood 

     

Great Harwood 
Young People’s 
Centre 

Young 
People’s 
Centre 

Lowerfold Road, 
Great Harwood 
BB6 7NS 

Propose to close 1 1 

 
3.18 The report referred to in paragraph 3.8 recommends that LCC Cabinet “Instruct officers 

to consider the viability of the expressions of interest received in relation to the transfer 
of Council premises as set out in Appendix "B" and to bring back a further report to the 
next meeting of Cabinet for consideration. 

Page 24



 

 

 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable 
 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 Lancashire County Council received over 5,500 responses to consultations on their 

proposals as stated on the website. 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

Not applicable – none arising directly from 
this report. 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

Not applicable 

Assessment of risk 
 

Not applicable 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

Not applicable  

 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
 
7.1 Agenda, Reports and Minutes of Lancashire County Council’s Cabinet on 26th 

November 2016 
http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=122&MId=5226&Ver=4 

 
Agenda, Reports and Minutes of Lancashire County Council’s Executive Scrutiny 
Committee on 24th November 2015 
http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=878&MID=5266#AI36007 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407
http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=122&MId=5226&Ver=4
http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=878&MID=5266#AI36007


 

 

 
 
 

Page 26



Cabinet
Meeting to be held on 26 November 2015

Report of the Head of Asset Management
Electoral Division affected:
All

Property Strategy – Neighbourhood Centres
(Appendices 'A' and 'B' refer)

Contact for further information: 
Matthew Tidmarsh, 01772 533243, Head of Asset Management, 
matthew.tidmarsh@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

This report sets out a methodology to achieve a sustainable long term reduction in 
the County Council's corporate property portfolio to align with the aspirations of the 
Corporate Strategy and to enable the future successful delivery of public facing 
services.  Appendix 'A' (with appendices 1-3) recommends a 'long' list of premises 
from which multi-functional Neighbourhood Centres could be selected and form the 
basis for service delivery.

If the proposed strategy is approved, the premises from this long list that would remain 
as Neighbourhood Centres would be based on:

 Need as determined by analysis of the Indices for Multiple Deprivation (IMD) 
across 34 Service Planning Areas (SPAs).

 Approved service delivery budget options.
 A dispassionate analysis of chosen datasets as described within the strategy 

document.

Recommendations

It is recommended that: 

1. approval be given to the proposed strategy for the reduction of the County 
Council's corporate operational property and methodology for the delivery of 
public facing services from a series of multi-functional 'Neighbourhood 
Centres'.

2. approval be given for the evaluation of identified datasets and subsequent 
consultation on the recommendations for the final selection of premises to 
become Neighbourhood Centres.

3. approval be given for contact to be made with relevant public sector partners, 
including the voluntary sector, to explore opportunities for co-location and 
sharing of service delivery.  

Page 27

mailto:matthew.tidmarsh@lancashire.gov.uk


4. that approval be given for the estimated cost of works required to premises to 
deliver the Property Strategy (Neighbourhood Centres) to be added to the 
Capital Programme, and that detailed phasing of the required expenditure be  
provided in subsequent reports.

Background and Advice 

The County Council's property portfolio excluding schools is a significant asset 
comprising in the order of 500 operational sites.   It is likely that in the coming years 
the ability to operate from these various sites will be severely diminished as a result of 
the budgetary challenges facing all service areas.  As a consequence it is sensible to 
consider the extent of this portfolio and determine how a targeted reduction could be 
best achieved.

The attached proposed strategy considers how this could be undertaken and 
recommends the transformation of certain premises into 'Neighbourhood Centres' 
which would provide a range of targeted front facing publicly accessed council services 
compared with the present approach which relies heavily on single function premises, 
e.g., Libraries, Children's Centres.

A total of 220 premises have been selected from the total property holdings of the 
County Council to be considered in the proposed review.  Certain premises are out of 
scope as being completely unsuitable for front facing public service delivery e.g., 
Homes for Older People, Children's Homes, Outdoor Education Establishments, 
Landfill sites etc.

It is proposed that the reduction in premises from 220 be based upon need assessed 
in a series of 34 Service Planning Areas (SPAs) across the County using the 2015 
English Indices of Multiple Deprivation.  Application of this approach would deliver a 
reduction of 108 premises.

Approval of the proposed strategy would enable detailed analysis and consultation to 
identify the candidates for inclusion in the 'Neighbourhood Centres' portfolio and by 
exception, which premises would be recommended for disposal.

Consultations

The proposed strategy for the reduction of corporate property holdings has been 
discussed with relevant service heads with a view to ensuring that the final 
recommended list of premises to remain as Neighbourhood Centres would align 
operationally with various delivery plans, e.g., the Libraries Strategy and the 
Wellbeing, Prevention and Early Health Strategy. 
Risk Management

The Property Strategy (Neighbourhood Centres) will provide the premises framework 
for the delivery of other key strategies and plans in the County Council.  Not approving 
the draft strategy would mean that the County Council is potentially unable to progress 
work to ensure the delivery of appropriately targeted and financially viable services for 
the future.  It would also mean that the sustained long term reductions in revenue 

Page 28



running costs and a reduction in necessary capital investment in premises would not 
be realised.

Equality Analysis 

Members are asked to note that a separate report for this meeting has been 
prepared by the Director of Governance, Finance and Public Services. The report 
outlines in detail our obligations in terms of the Equality Act 2010 and specifically 
highlights section 149 of the act that refers to the Public Sector Equality Duty 
(PSED). In addition, the report explains how the legislation is applied in practice.

The Equality Analysis is attached at Appendix 'B'.

Financial

If the proposals contained within the report are approved there will be a reduction in 
revenue running costs from corporate premises.  An initial investment in condition, 
suitability and sufficiency of the remaining premises would be required but this would 
to some degree be offset by the capital receipt from owned or freehold premises 
vacated and disposed of and the reduced requirement for investment in condition 
works of the vacated premises.  The detail of the likely financial implications based 
upon the analysis from a scoping exercise undertaken to estimate the impact of the 
proposed strategy is as follows:-

Total current running costs of 220 premises £6.4 million

Estimated running costs reductions £1.95 million

Estimated condition based investment required £8.4 million
(based on 112 premises from scoping exercise)

Estimated condition based investment cost avoidance £8.6 million
(based on work no longer required to 108 vacated
premises from scoping exercise)

Estimated capital receipt from sale of vacated premises £11 - 14 million

Estimated dilapidations costs (terminated or surrendered leases) £1-1.5 million

Estimated possible suitability investment required £20 million
(20% of remaining 112 premises from scoping exercise)

Property Asset Management

If the proposed strategy is implemented there would be a sustained long term 
reduction in the size of the corporate property portfolio.  Based on the scoping work 
undertaken to inform the proposed Property Strategy, there would be a reduction in 
the corporate property portfolio of some 108 premises.

Page 29



List of Background Papers
Paper Date Contact/Tel

Corporate Strategy: 
Consultation 
http://council.lancashire.gov
.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?
CId=122&MId=5070

12 August 2015 Dave Carr, Head of 
Service, Policy, Information 
and Commissioning (Start 
Well) 01772 532066

Page 30

http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=122&MId=5070
http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=122&MId=5070
http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=122&MId=5070

	Agenda
	3. Minutes of Last Meeting
	4. Responses of Cabinet to reports of Overview and Scrutiny - Work Programmes
	5. Appointment of Co-optees
	6. Lancashire County Council Property Strategy Review
	Appendix 1 - Property Strategy - Neighbourhood Centres (Copy of Report to LCC Cabinet on 26th November 2015)


